
 
 

CABINET 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL 
 

 

DATE Tuesday, 2nd January, 2018 

TIME 1.00 pm 

LOCATION Siambr Hywel Dda, Council Offices, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, 

LL55 1SH 

CONTACT POINT Annes Siôn 

01286 679490 

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET MEMBERS 
 

Members 

Dyfrig L. Siencyn Leader 

Mair Rowlands Deputy Leader 

Craig ab Iago Cabinet Member for Housing, Leisure 
and Culture 

Gareth Wyn Griffith Cabinet Member of Highways and 
Municipal 

Peredur Jenkins Cabinet Member for Finance 

Dafydd Meurig Cabinet Member for the Environment 

Dilwyn Morgan Cabinet Member for Children and 
Young People 

W. Gareth Roberts Cabinet Member for Adults, Health 
and Wellbeing 

Gareth Thomas Cabinet Member for Education 

Ioan Thomas Cabinet Member for Economic 
Development 

 

Complete Agenda



 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 Item Submitted 
by 

Officer Page 

1   APOLOGIES 

 

   

2   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL 
INTEREST 

 

   

3   URGENT ITEMS 

 

   

4   MATTERS ARISING FROM OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY 

 

   

5   PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE 
CABINET MEMBER FOR THE 
ENVIRONMENT 

 

Cyng / Cllr 
Dafydd 
Meurig 

Dilwyn 
Williams 

3 - 43 

6   PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE 
CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION 

 

Cyng / Cllr 
Gareth 
Thomas 

Iwan Trefor 
Jones 

44 - 
59 

7   PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE 
DEPUTY LEADER 

 

Cyng / Cllr 
Mair 
Rowlands 

Dilwyn 
Williams 

60 - 
76 



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET 

 

 

 

 
Cyswllt: 

01286 679868 

01286 679490 
cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

www.gwynedd.gov.uk 

 

 

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet 
 

1 INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update my fellow members on what has been 

happening in the fields within my remit as Cabinet Member for the Environment. 

This includes outlining the latest developments against pledges within the Strategic 

Plan; where we have reached with the performance measures; and the latest in 

terms of plans for savings and cuts. 

 

1.2 The only promises which are relevant to the Strategic Plan are the savings schemes 

and an update on these is provided in part 5. 

 

1.3 I would remind you that all matters have already been the subject of 

discussions and have been scrutinised at meetings of the Management 

Team which also includes two representatives of the relevant Scrutiny 

Committee. 
 

1.4 On the whole, I am happy with the performance of the measures for which 

I am responsible, or that relevant steps have been taken to improve 

performance. 
 

 

Date: 2 January 2018 

Title of Item: Performance Report Cabinet Member for the 

Environment 

Purpose: To accept and note the information in the report 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Dafydd Meurig 

Contact Officer: Dilwyn Williams, Chief Executive 

  

  

Page 3

Agenda Item 5

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


 

 

2 THE DECISION SOUGHT 

 

2.1 To accept and note the information in the report 

 

2.2 Reduce the savings target for travel savings from £390,000 to £240,000 and 

move the delivery year from 2018/19 to 2019/20, however, requesting for 

the scheme to be implemented before 1 April 2019 if it is ready. 
 

3 THE REASON FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION 
 

3.1 In order to ensure effective performance management. 

  

4. PERFORMANCE 

 

4.1   Appendix 1 reports on the performance measures that are associated with my 

portfolio. The use of graphs is developing in order to report on measures in a simple 

and comprehensive way.  

 

4.2 The Planning Service is responsible for facilitating and managing developments in 

the interests of our communities, the economy and the environment.  

 

4.3 I have been keeping an eye on the performance measure How quickly all 

applications have taken on average to be determined (C2) following the 

deterioration seen in the previous report to 61 days. The cumulative average of the 

measure for the year is 60 days to determine an application, with the performance 

of every reporting period between 63 and 50 days. 

 

4.4 I have challenged the performance, and in a response, the Service noted that the 

staffing factors and delay stemming from the Planning Committee which had 

caused the performance to decline, continued to have an impact. However, they 

are hopeful that the proposed constitutional changes following the 

recommendations of the Scrutiny Investigation will reduce the Planning 

Committee's workload. This should, in turn, have a positive impact of the Service's 

performance. 

 

4.5 It is noted that the performance of the measure How quickly have all Enforcement 

cases taken on average to be resolved (C6) has once again deteriorated recently, 

by increasing from 92 days back to 146.5 days. Likewise, it is seen that the 

Percentage of enforcement cases resolved within 12 weeks of receipt during the 

year (C7) has reduced to 45.45% compared with 82% in the report submitted in 

September. The Service notes that the staff capacity has caused performance to 

slip, following the Service losing an officer in the previous savings cycle. 

 

4.6 The discussion in regards to the measures is continuing, as I am still not sure if the 

measure reports on what matters to the citizen namely that we find a solution to 

any complaints. The Service is continuing to consider the best way to measure its 

performance in this field. It is also looking at its procedures to ensure that cases are 

prioritised effectively and that a service that safeguards and adds value for the 

citizen is provided. 

 

4.7 The purpose of the Public Protection Service is to support businesses and safeguard 

public health and environmental standards and trading standards for the public 

Page 4



and ensure that licensable activities are provided in a way which protects the 

public and supports businesses.  

 

4.8 In the period in question, it is seen that the Percentage of high risk businesses 

inspected in line with the programme (G2) which are inspected late has increased 

to 8% compared with 7% noted in the previous report. The Service noted that the 

main reason why the programme had slipped was due to workload compared 

with the resources, especially taking into account the number of businesses 

inspected which are only open during the summer. The Service has by now 

inspected 47% of the business.  

 

4.9 It is noted that the Percentage of the significant breaches that were resolved 

through intervention from Public Protection (G5) has increased to 81% compared 

with 57% noted in the previous report.  Although this appears to be a significant 

improvement, it appears that the improvement is due to the increase of officers' 

recording. It is therefore important to encourage officers to record their work in full 

to ensure that it is seen and recognised. The Service also noted that the on-going 

cases are ones where the investigation is continuing, or are cases where a 

prosecution is under way. 

 

4.10 The information regarding the Average number of days taken to determine a taxi 

licence application (G7) that the performance has improved to 8.95 days 

compared with 10.24 noted in the previous report. However, it is seen that a 

number of cases are taking a longer period of time to solve. I have recommended 

that the Service separate the licence applications by drivers from the vehicle 

licence applications in order to see the performance more clearly. The Service 

noted that the applications are processed quickly once all the information has 

been submitted. 

 

4.11 The Property Service is responsible for supporting the Council's Departments by 

providing suitable property for providing services and ensuring that the Council's 

property portfolio is managed effectively and efficiently.  

 

4.12 We see that the data measuring the Time (in days) taken to respond to a request 

for maintenance work (Property1) remains consistent at 9.5 days. Some calls 

continue to take much longer than average to solve, usually in cases where the 

work is complicated or specialised in nature. The Service intends to install software 

that will improve control over calls and contractors. The Service is also continuing 

with a scheme to employ tradesmen in order to improve the prioritisation of 

resources, which should lead to standardising the response time to calls and 

improve the service for the people of Gwynedd. 

 

4.13 The method of gathering the information for the Safety and Scheduled Work Unit 

Customer Satisfaction Percentage (Property5), has been changed, and the 

satisfaction percentage has fallen. This has led to two developments. Firstly, the 

Service is gathering better feedback when gathering views, which enables them 

to improve the service. Secondly, the Service, as many other services, has found 

that their clients have tired of providing feedback on every piece of work 

accepted. It is understood that this matter is being addressed by the Chief 

Executive as part of the review on the implementation of our corporate 

performance management arrangements. 

 

4.14 There has been a recent change in the method of measuring Feedback from the 

users of new buildings, two years after opening (Property7), by asking for a score 

out of ten rather than only asking if the client is happy. This change has led to 

receiving many more valuable responses going forward. Page 5



 

4.15 It can be seen that the Number of appeals to the independent adjudicator which 

are approved (Property11) has remained at zero so far in 2017/18.   

 

4.16 The Estates and Facilities Unit has been reviewing its purposes and measures, and 

has submitted measure Estates and Facilities Unit's Customer Satisfaction 

Percentage(Property 12). The Service notes that the responses have been 

completely positive in terms of the quality of work, with all the complaints relating 

to the time taken to carry out the work. The time the Unit takes to carry out the 

work is a direct result of the workload and a reduction in the number of staff 

following the recent cuts. Temporary additional staff have been employed to 

increase the Unit's capacity. There is also an intention to carry out a Ffordd 

Gwynedd exercise in this Unit, and there is an intention for the Communities 

Scrutiny Committee to scrutinize the procedure of administering the smallholdings 

portfolio. 

 

4.17 The Integrated Transport Unit in its entirety facilitates people's ability to travel from 

one place to another across a network that is safe whilst also raising their 

awareness of and educate them about safety. 

 

4.18 Work is in progress in the Street Works Unit and the Countryside Unit to develop 

suitable measures. It has led to a clear and very comprehensive graph in the report 

on the measure Percentage of public transport journeys that are punctual 

(Transportation01). The task of perceiving measures has led to refocus the work 

towards the needs of the people of Gwynedd, whilst moving away from decisions 

made in the past to try to reduce costs. 

 

4.19 The task of perceiving measures which reflect the work of the Countryside Service 

continues. I will report on this in the future. 

 

5 FINANCIAL POSITION / SAVINGS  

 

 

Acheiving Current Savings 

 

5.1 Very good progress has been made towards realising the 2017/18 plans with 97% 

of savings having been acheived or on track. However, it is possible that some 

slippage will be seen whilst working towards two savings schemes:  

 Savings Plan Rh33 (Smallholdings rent review), where the department 

responsible has begun the work. 

 Savings Plan  Rh42 (Public Protection – charging a fee for advice), because 

it is intended to begin charging a fee in quarter 4 

I foresee little other slippage, with the savings having been achieved fully by 

2018/19. 

 

5.2 Planning Future Savings 

 

In addition to discovering its own savings, the Department is responsible for leading 

a Council-wide project to reduce future travelling costs. 

 

Page 6



The initial work shows that the original estimates were far from being correct as they 

had considered that savings would be possible within grant-funded schemes etc. 

which is incorrect. 

 

When not considering those fields where there would be no savings, the potential 

amount falls from the £390,000 originally identified, to £240,000. 

 

Further work shows that this amount is likely to fall further given that a number of 

our staff work from centres where a lease car would not be justifiable in that 

particular centre.  Although, having said that, the outline business case shows that 

there are possible savings, however if they are to be realised, care should be taken 

to ensure a completely viable scheme. 

 

It is therefore recommended that the savings target should be moved from 2018/19 

to 2019/20, requesting for the scheme to be implemented before 1 April 2019 if 

possible. 

 

 

Views of the Statutory Officers: 

i. Chief Executive: 

 

ii. Monitoring Officer: 

I note the desire to amend the counstitution following the scrutiny investiagtion and 

I support moving thsi forward to a Decision. No further comments regarding 

propriety. 

 

iii. Head of Finance Department: 

I confirm that the comments in section 5 are a fair reflection of the situation 

regarding the Environment Department’s situation in relation to acheiving 

savings. 

Regarding the “reducing travelling costs” savings plan, with the Cabinet’s 

consent to the recommendation in secion 2.2 of the report, i will be reviewing 

the amount and reprofiling the timescale of the saving in the Council’s 

Finance Strategy (£240,000 to be acheived in 2019/20) 
 

 

 

 

Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 - Performance Measures  

Page 7



P
age 8

829222
Text Box
C1 Percentage of customers stating that they were satisfied or very satisfied with the Planning service’s level of service

829222_1
Text Box
Response for the Period

829222_2
Text Box
Cumulative Response 2017-18

829222_3
Text Box
ObservationsThe questionnaire is based on a sample of customers who have received a decision on a planning application during the period. The reasons for the dissatisfaction of some of the customers includes dissatisfaction with the decision, no discussion before refusing an application and difficult to get hold of a Planning Officer and the contact arrangements. The comments of satisfaction include “one hundred percent happy with the service with this planning application – even through the application was refused”, “very satisfied as always”, “have dealt with a number of planning authorities and the way this application was dealt with was very professional – right up there at the top”.



P
age 9

829222_4
Text Box
C2 How quickly all applications were being determined on average

829222_5
Text Box
Average for the Period

829222_6
Text Box
Cumulative Average 2017-18

829222_7
Text Box
Statutory Period

829222_8
Text Box
ObservationsThe number of days it has taken on average to determine applications since April 2017 has been relatively consistent at around the 60 day mark, and notes the performance for October – November and includes one month, namely October. The performance is influenced by a few applications that have been in the system for a long time – because of the need for more information and because of the objective of trying to support acceptable applications – with the relevant information/evidence. The average time taken is influenced by the number of applications that needed to be reported to the Planning Committee, listed buildings applications that needed Cadw’s approval, the need for amended plans. It is also stated that this is a period where there has been long-term sickness in the Service – which slows down the process. The Service is currently implementing recommendations following a Scrutiny Investigation in the planning field – which looked at amending the Delegating Planning Arrangement, which will subsequently reduce the Committee’s workload.



P
age 10

829222_9
Text Box
C3 How quickly applications determined within 56 days were being determined on average

829222_10
Text Box
Average for the Period

829222_11
Text Box
Cumulative Average 2017-18

829222_12
Text Box
ObservationsThe performance has been consistent for the period since April 2017, although figures for the previous year show the average to be lower. This is likely due to the same factors as referred to in C2.



P
age 11

829222_13
Text Box
C4 Percentage of all planning applications determined within 56 days

829222_14
Text Box
Average for the Period

829222_15
Text Box
Cumulative Average 2017-18

829222_16
Text Box
ObservationsThe performance since April 2017 shows progress in the percentage for every two months’ worth of planning applications that have been resolved within 56 days – noting that the last period where the figure was 78% was for October only. Note the observations for the C2 measure, which explains the reasons behind the performance.



P
age 12

829222_17
Text Box
C5 Percentage of planning applications resolved and approved

829222_18
Text Box
Average for the Period

829222_19
Text Box
Cumulative Average 2017-18

829222_20
Text Box
ObservationsThe percentage of applications approved was consistent at around the 90% mark, which is clear evidence of a positive planning service.



P
age 13

829222_21
Text Box
C6 How quickly all Enforcement cases have been resolved on average

829222_22
Text Box
Average for the Period

829222_23
Text Box
Cumulative Average 2017-18

829222_24
Text Box
12 weeks

829222_25
Text Box
ObservationsSome cases take longer where compliance took place via negotiation, meaning that cases were open for longer periods than usual, but also, that cases were open for longer than necessary. It is noted that the Unit has less capacity as a result of cuts and that arrangements were being put in place to reconcile the work (and to look at an alternative measure) with the intention of introducing the need for complainants to formally introduce a complaint on a standard form – which follows the Council’s pre-application offer of advice arrangement. The intention is to ensure that complaints received are of importance and that this enables the Unit to focus on prioritising complaints.



P
age 14

829222_26
Text Box
C7 The percentage of enforcement cases resolved within 12 weeks of receipt

829222_27
Text Box
Average for the Period

829222_28
Text Box
Cumulative Average 2017-18

829222_29
Text Box
ObservationsThe percentage varies based on the number of cases within the specific periods noting that the final period only includes October. See C6 observations.



P
age 15

829222_30
Text Box
C8 How quickly were the enforcement cases resolved within 12 weeks being resolved on average 

829222_31
Text Box
Average for the Period

829222_32
Text Box
Cumulative Average 2017-18

829222_33
Text Box
ObservationsThis reflects the simple enforcement cases that can be investigated and resolved quickly – namely, the cases that do not require formal enforcement steps or where enforcement steps cannot be justified as it is an elective power. See observations C6.



P
age 16

829222_34
Text Box
The policy measure until the end of July 2017:C9 – Reach a key stage of the process of preparing the Joint Local Development Plan. Consider the responses to the consultation on the Deposit Plan. Present the Joint Local Development Plan to Welsh Government.

829222_35
Text Box
The policy measure since August 2017:Adopt the Supplementary Planning Guidances to the Joint Local Development Plan, including adopting 4 SPGs by the 3rd Quarter of 2017-18 (This was noted in the monitoring framework for the Joint Local Development Plan)

829222_36
Text Box
Observations – Joint Local Development Plan (Gwynedd and Anglesey)Both Councils adopted the Plan at the end of July 2017 and this is, therefore, the statutory Development Plan for Gwynedd (not including???), that will form the basis of all decisions made on planning applications.Observations – The SPGs flesh out the policies of the Local Development Plan and provide officers and potential planning permission applicants with guidance on the consistent implementation of the policies. During Quarter 3 (2017-18) the aim was for 4 SPGs to be adopted, namely:Maintaining and creating notable and sustainable communitiesPlanning CommitmentsAffordable housing SPGsLocal market housingThe timetable was agreed when I was waiting to adopt the Plan earlier in the year. The timetable has slipped as the Plan was not adopted until the beginning of Quarter 2 (2017-18) and it was not, therefore, practical to allocate resources to begin the work. Having adopted the Plan, there was an increase in the demand for planning policy guidance by the Unit from the planning officers associated with reconciling some of the new policies. Two members of the Team that leads on three of the four SPGs have been home on sickness leave for periods of time, one of whom is still on sickness leave. Collectively, there were insufficient resources and a lack of reasonable time to progress with preparing the first series of SPGs.  Work is now in the pipeline associated with each of them and the aim is to submit draft SPGs for the attention of the Joint Local Development Plan Panel during Quarter 4 (2017-18) prior to a public consultation.



P
age 17

829222_37
Text Box
C10 – Percentage of affordable houses approved (Cumulative number of Houses approved)

829222_38
Text Box
Houses

829222_39
Text Box
Affordable Houses

829222_40
Text Box
Affordable Houses – Section 106

829222_41
Text Box
ObservationsThe percentage of approved affordable houses is at 35.9% (66 houses + 20 affordable houses + 17 Section 106 Affordable Houses = 103 Units. 37/103 = 35.9%) which shows the planning services direct contribution to the provision of affordable houses.



P
age 18

829222_42
Text Box
C2 CAP Chart – how quickly all applications were determined

829222_43
Text Box
Planning Application

829222_44
Text Box
Average

829222_45
Text Box
Statutory Period



P
age 19

829222_46
Text Box
G1 Percentage of customers who responded to a survey stating that they were satisfied with the level of the service

829222_47
Text Box
Dissatisfied

829222_48
Text Box
Satisfied

829222_49
Text Box
Number of Satisfied Customers

829222_50
Text Box
Total Number of Customers Targeted

829222_51
Text Box
Data per Unit

829222_52
Text Box
Dissatisfied

829222_53
Text Box
Satisfied

829222_54
Text Box
ObservationsTwo were dissatisfied with the situation following intervention by an officer. What we have here is two neighbours complaining about each other – and records show that the officer had made every possible effort to resolve the situation in terms of the claim of statutory nuisance. The rest of the observations are very positive ones.



P
age 20

829222_55
Text Box
G2 Percentage of high-risk businesses  inspected in accordance with the programme

829222_56
Text Box
Inspected

829222_57
Text Box
Over 28 days late

829222_58
Text Box
To do

829222_59
Text Box
Inspected

829222_60
Text Box
The Programme

829222_61
Text Box
Number of high-risk businesses inspected in accordance with the programme

829222_62
Text Box
Number of businesses inspected

829222_63
Text Box
Number of businesses where the inspection is over 28 days late

829222_64
Text Box
Number of businesses awaiting inspection

829222_65
Text Box
ObservationsTo date, 630 high-risk inspections have been programmed for inspection by the end of the year. 38 high-risk businesses have closed since the beginning of the year. By the end of the period, the food hygiene inspection for 50 businesses scheduled for inspection had slipped beyond the 28 days of the scheduled date. One business was still awaiting inspection, which had been programmed for April this year, 5 in May, 3 in June, 7 in July, 2 in August, 27 in June and 5 in October. Officers will prioritise hygiene inspections at seasonal properties during the summer months, which means that inspections of properties that are open throughout the year are sometimes postponed. But, in general, it must be acknowledged that it is a failure to carry out inspections punctually that is the main reason for the majority of the slipped inspections, mainly as a consequence of workload. Most of the 50 businesses that have slipped have a food hygiene score of 4 (Good) or 5 (very good). Priority will be given to carrying out an inspection at this property in the near future.



P
age 21

829222_66
Text Box
G3 The percentage of the Air Pollution Processes businesses that have received an inspection during…

829222_67
Text Box
Inspected

829222_68
Text Box
To do

829222_69
Text Box
Number of businesses inspected

829222_70
Text Box
Number of businesses awaiting inspection

829222_71
Text Box
The percentage of the Air Pollution Processes businesses that have received an inspection during…

829222_72
Text Box
Inspected

829222_73
Text Box
The Programme

829222_74
Text Box
ObservationsFollowing an officer’s resignation in the middle of Quarter 2, the relevant inspections scheduled to him were not allocated to other officers until September. There were staffing problems in July/August following the resignation of two staff members, and long-term absences of two other team members which meant that the work load of the four remaining staff members was substantially higher, and this was during the busiest time of the year. New staff members have now been recruited and are being trained. Meanwhile, the experienced team members have been given the opportunity to catch up with the inspection programme during October 2017. The Service reports annually to Welsh Government on this performance measure, and 100% of the inspections will have been completed by the end of March 2018.



P
age 22

829222_75
Text Box
G4 Percentage of animal feed establishments inspected in accordance with the schedule

829222_76
Text Box
Inspected

829222_77
Text Box
late

829222_78
Text Box
To do

829222_79
Text Box
Percentage of animal feed establishments inspected in accordance with the schedule

829222_80
Text Box
Inspected

829222_81
Text Box
The Programme

829222_82
Text Box
The number of establishments that have been inspected

829222_83
Text Box
The number of establishments for which the inspection has been late

829222_84
Text Box
The total number of establishments requiring an inspection

829222_85
Text Box
ObservationsThis is a unique arrangement by the Food Standards Agency in terms of ‘feed’ enforcement – at the start of every financial year the ASB asks that every region report on the number of properties that are ‘due’ a ‘feed’ inspection on their database (Chief Officer from Wrexham leads on behalf of the North Wales Region). The Chief Officer then allocates the visits ‘due’ between the six Authorities based on risk and the type of property e.g. Manufacturers A01, Mixer R10, Pet Foods Producer A6, Farms (livestock) R13 etc. with the relevant authority receiving a specific pay for every inspection (dependent on the amount of money the ASB has for carrying out ‘food enforcement’ in Wales). Because of resources, the number of inspections expected as part of the ASB are somewhat lower than the complete figure for properties that are due for inspection in Gwynedd, since there are approximately 2000 farms in Gwynedd! Nevertheless, inspections are prioritised according to risk (Risk Score 1 = every year, Risk Score 2 = every two year etc.) and type of property (R10, R6 etc).



P
age 23

829222_86
Text Box
G5 Percentage of the significant breaches that were resolved through intervention by Public Protection

829222_87
Text Box
Number Resolved

829222_88
Text Box
Number discovered

829222_89
Text Box
Per Unit Data

829222_90
Text Box
Observations20 significant breaches were identified, according to the records, appeared not to have been resolved by the pollution team officers. The records were reviewed and it is possible to confirm that the problems have been solved but that the records had not been updated – mainly due to the long term sickness of one officer over the Summer. The nine significant breaches that were still open for the feed team at the end of the period have been resolved. The trading standards cases that are still open are cases where, either the investigation is still ongoing or where a prosecution is in the pipeline.



P
age 24

829222_91
Text Box
G6 Percentage food establishments that reach Food Hygiene standards

829222_92
Text Box
ObservationsOnly 0.8% of Gwynedd food businesses do not comply with current food hygiene standards. These businesses will be subject to prioritised intervention by us. Businesses that do not comply because they are unable to meet basic requirements such as cross-contamination arrangements, written management arrangements. It is suggested that the statistic highlight the efforts of the Council to raise and maintain standards among the County’s businesses.



P
age 25

829222_93
Text Box
G7 CAP Chart to show the average number of days taken to determine a Taxi Licence application.

829222_94
Text Box
Taxi Application

829222_95
Text Box
Average



P
age 26

829222_96
Text Box
The average number of days taken to determine a Taxi Licence application.

829222_97
Text Box
Drivers

829222_98
Text Box
Operators

829222_99
Text Box
Vehicles

829222_100
Text Box
ObservationsFollowing a Ffordd Gwynedd review, new measures were put in place for licensing. The new measures, and specifically the above measure, focused on the customer’s experience. Once the application is complete, our records show that the officers process applications quickly, in two to three days on average. Since changing the performance measure, the average number of days taken to determine taxi applications is calculated from the first occasion a customer comes to us with an application. The application cannot be processed until it is complete and two factors significantly affect the time – namely, the time taken by the national DBS Service to process the DBS certificate and the time taken to arrange a Licensing Sub-committee meeting for the application to be heard.



P
age 27

829222_101
Text Box
PROPERTY I – CAP CHART CALLS CLOSED WITHIN 12 MONTHS to 21/10/17The time (in days) it takes to respond to a request for maintenance work

829222_102
Text Box
The data of individual calls can be seen on the “cap chart”. The performance has remained the same as in the previous period. One call stands out as a very long call, and it involves a contractor that has failed to perform as expected for some time. We have taken step to manage the situation and this was one of the reasons behind appointing two plumber of our own recently. Our present software system does not allow us to easily identify calls that have taken a long time to resolve. By January we will have transferred to a new system which will provide us with powerful analytics to enable us to manage our performance. The information will also be shared with our contractors and will be used daily by our own staff.



9.45

48.02

0.000.00

50.00

100.00

150.00

200.00

250.00

300.00

350.00

400.00

450.00

500.00

D
y
d

d
ia

u
 y

m
a
te

b

Rhif trac

EIDDO 1 - CAP CHART GALWADAU WEDI CAU 12 MIS i 21/10/17 

P
age 28

829222_103
Text Box
PROPERTY I – CAP CHART CALLS CLOSED WITHIN 12 MONTHS to 21/10/17

829222_104
Text Box
Days to respond



 

P
age 29

829222_105
Text Box
PROPERTY 2 – The Maintenance Unit’s Customer Satisfaction percentage.

829222_106
Text Box
Although the graph gives the impression that satisfaction has fallen sharply, only one negative comment was received from the 22 customers questioned. That customer was unhappy that the contractor had not followed the signing in procedure when visiting the site. We have reminded the contractor in question and he has been following the procedure. Otherwise, the feedback continues to be positive and negative comments are highly infrequent.



 

P
age 30

829222_107
Text Box
PROPERTY 3 – Percentage of Council buildings in the category of good or acceptable condition.

829222_108
Text Box
Changes in work procedures

829222_109
Text Box
The percentage has increased over the most recent period. We looked at the buildings in the “unacceptable” and “have reached the end of their life” (list on the following page) categories and we were able to remove three buildings from the list, as it was not the Council’s responsibility to maintain them! From the list of 13 remaining, the majority are small buildings that are not being used to provide front line services. We can prioritise expenditure on these in order to improve the measure but it is likely that we would wrongly prioritise our expenditure, in truth, since there are so many investment requirements in buildings that are in constant use by the public. It must be emphasised that over 70% of our buildings are in category B and, thus, if we are unable to continue to invest in their maintenance, there is a risk that they will quickly slip back into category C.



Rhestr o'r 13 adeilad yng nghategori cyflwr C a D 

Safle 
Ty Ysgol Penfforddelen 
Parc Padarn 
Edern Toilets 
Depo Bronaber 
Depo Priffyrdd Tywyn 
Depo Priffyrdd Tywyn 
Aerfen 
Aerfen 
Aerfen 
Aerfen 
Aerfen 
Boderyl 
Boderyl 
Boderyl 
 

Adeilad 
Modurdy 
Hen Doiledau  
7217/A 
A019/A 
Sied 
Sied 
L5305/B 
L5305/C 
L5305/D 
L5305/E 
L5305/F 
L5306/B 
L5306/C 
L5306/D 
 

 

P
age 31

829222_110
Text Box
SitePenfforddelen School HouseParc PadarnEdern ToiletsBronaber DepotTywyn Highways DepotTywyn Highways DepotAerfenAerfenAerfenAerfenAerfenBoderylBoderylBoderyl

829222_111
Text Box
BuildingGarageOld Toilets7217/AA019/AShedShedL5305/BL5305/CL5305/DL5305/EL5305/FL5306/BL5306/CL5306/D



P
age 32

829222_112
Text Box
PROPERTY 4 – Percentage buildings with suitable safety systems in place

829222_113
Text Box
The percentage has once again improved during the most recent period. We are beginning to see a pattern establish itself – we are solving problems at the buildings that do not comply and this, in turn, improves the percentage. However, new problems are emerging in different buildings that consequently reduce the percentage once again! Reasons that the 6% require attention at present include:-	Paperwork of recurrent tests has not been returned by contractors/discovering that tests are “out of date” – arrangements in place to improve this-	Change of use to part of a building meaning that fire risks or risks of legionella need to be reassessed-	Problems with the condition creating risks – temporary measures in place



P
age 33

829222_114
Text Box
PROPERTY 5 – Safety and Scheduled Works Unit Customer Satisfaction Percentage

829222_115
Text Box
Change in the recording and calculating methods

829222_116
Text Box
Even though we used the method of asking for a score out of 10, over the three previous periods we have continued to receive very positive feedback. Over the most recent period, only one in 38 customers gave a score of less than 10 and that was because they would have liked more consistent updates about responsive work – that is not the only thing that this measure calculates, of course! The team feels that the “percentage of buildings with suitable safety systems in place” measure is beneficial and one that reflects their efforts. However, they do not feel that collecting the customer satisfaction data throughout the year by now enables them to learn a lot. We intend to continue to collect data but less frequently.



P
age 34

829222_117
Text Box
PROPERTY 6 – The Property Development Unit’s Customer Satisfaction Percentage

829222_118
Text Box
Change in the recording and calculating methods

829222_119
Text Box
The feedback on the Property Development Unit’s work remains at 100%. Over the last two periods, we have changed the method of gathering data and now ask for a score out of 10. Every response has provided a score of 10 over this period once again (7 projects). A number of positive observations praising the service were received e.g. “We have been working very effectively with EJ for a number of years and are having…



P
age 35

829222_120
Text Box
PROPERTY 7 – Feedback from the users of new buildings, two years after opening (Average score out of 10)

829222_121
Text Box
Historically we asked customers whether they were still satisfied with their building two years after it had opened. Everyone remained happy but we knew that everyone had some suggestions as to how to make things even better. It is very valuable for us to learn of these suggestions since we can use them in designing and building the next project. By asking everyone for a score out of 10 we have been better able to gain access to this information. Everyone remains “happy” but willing to explain why they are not giving 10/10. Reasons include:-	Difficulty communicating with the Architect, especially during the design and defects stage-	Headteacher had not been appointed during the design phase and does not, therefore, agree with some things-	Playing field not been completed properly in GroeslonThese observations are very valuable, especially in supporting us to try to change future arrangements.



P
age 36

829222_122
Text Box
PROPERTY 8 – Pest Control Unit’s Customer Satisfaction Percentage

829222_123
Text Box
This is a new measure following this Unit’s transfer to the Property Department. The Pest Control unit is a “commercial” service for the public and it is, therefore, vital that our customers believe they receive an effective service for their money. This is the second period of measuring and the response continues to be very positive. One negative comment (out of 34) was received during the last period from an unhappy individual, as he/she had not expected to pay for the service. Otherwise, the comments continue to be very positive. There have also been a number of very positive comments e.g.-	“Very happy with the service, the problem was resolved immediately”-	“Brilliant same day service – so very happy”



P
age 37

829222_124
Text Box
PROPERTY 9 – Percentage reduction in carbon emissions from buildings during the year to date

829222_125
Text Box
This year to date the gas emissions are down 7.5% and electric emissions are up 0.8%. We must bear in mind that we only have data for emissions; therefore, the situation for the entire estate could differ by the end of the year. We use the measure as an early warning system if use increases. However, we use daily data that shows us whether there are any problems in individual buildings and this is even more useful for us to manage things from day to day.



P
age 38

829222_126
Text Box
PROPERTY 11 –Number of appeals to the Independent adjudicator that are approved

829222_127
Text Box
For the third consecutive period, the Adjudicator has not found against us during appeal. Over the past four months, only one case went to appeal and we were found to have acted fairly and reasonably. Historically, Castle Square in Caernarfon caused a high number of appeals – this led to imposing new arrangements and regulation in the area and the situation has improved substantially since these were enforced.



 

P
age 39

829222_128
Text Box
PROPERTY 12 – Estates and Facilities Unit’s Customer Satisfaction Percentage

829222_129
Text Box
This is a new measure. We have known for a while that this unit is under pressure and is unable to cope with its workload. As with every other unit, a number of staff have been lost because of the savings and cuts. At the same time, the workload has increased as every other department has been requesting their help to deliver their savings and cuts e.g. closing libraries, schools transportation plans, transfer of assets to the community, transferring toilets etc. They have opened 228 new cases over the past 6 months. We are providing the unit with temporary additional resources which has somewhat reduced the burden, but it will be some months yet before we see the results of this in performance, as junior staff gain experience and an understanding of the work. This measure will help show whether we are moving in the right direction. Out of the 18 customers questioned, five were dissatisfied. They all had the same reason – matters taking too long to resolve. There are no complaints about the quality of the work or the results, and some of those who are dissatisfied also emphasise this.



P
age 40

829222_130
Text Box
CAP CHART SHOWING THE NUMBER OF DAYS IT TAKES TO PROCESS STOPPING AND PARKING BAYS NOTICES



P
age 41

829222_131
Text Box
CAP CHART SHOWING THE NUMBER OF DAYS IT TAKES TO PROCESS SPEED RESTRICTION NOTICES



P
age 42

829222_132
Text Box
Chart to show the punctuality of buses from April to September 2017

829222_133
Text Box
Bus time

829222_134
Text Box
Maximum

829222_135
Text Box
Minimum

829222_136
Text Box
Up to 5 minutes late

829222_137
Text Box
Up to a minute early

829222_138
Text Box
Bus number 18 for Abersoch operating late because of the traffic between Penrhos and Ffordd yr Ala, Pwllheli – this part of the road suffers frequent congestion during summer and it affects the punctuality of buses. Looking to allow more time in the summer timetable to solve the problem (sufficient operating time in winter when traffic is light.) Wednesday is market day in Pwllheli, which aggravates the situation. Furthermore, 12/7/17 was the first sunny day after a series of miserable days, Pen Llŷn farmers were busy with their tractors, plant and silage trailers along the country roads.

829222_139
Text Box
Roadworks at Sling meant the bus was running late.

829222_140
Text Box
S2 Bus had left 2 minutes early, as the bus was full to capacity. The company sent an additional vehicle after it to make sure there was room for everyone.



Unit Layer Reference Measure 2016-2017 2017-2018 Comments 2016-2017 2017-2018 Comments

Integrated

Transport

1 Transport01 Percentage of monitored public transport journeys

(buses) that are within the reliability boundaries (bus

puncutality)

Percentage of public transport journeys that

are on time

95% 38 out of 40 service buses has been monitored as punctual. We only monitor services that are under contract. No problems arising. 88% 7 out of 8 service buses have been monitored as being punctual.

We only monitor contracted services. One fine was handed out

for "failure to display destination, service number or correct bus

identification number". One bus was monitored as being 11

minutes late - the company appealed and proved thht traffic

was very heavy on Penrhos road between Abersoch and Pwllheli

which was creating congestion.

Integrated

Transport

1 Transport02 Number of complaints received about public

transport services contracted by the Council (number

rather than percentage)

8

Out of 27 enquiries/complaints about public transport in Gwynedd, eight involved the service contracted by the Council (30%) e.g. Blaenau

Ffestiniog Community was dissatisfied with the new bus company for the local clipper bus, one evening route had been adjusted in order to

connect with the TrawsCymru; it, therefore, no longer services Cricieth. Lack of printed timetables. It should be noted that many complaints

generally surrounded the infrastructure and information provided rather than the bus service provision in itself. See additional information

leaflet.

No complaints were received

Integrated

Transport

1 Transport03 Number of complaints received about commercial

public transport services (number rather than

percentage)

19

Out of 27 enquiries/complaints about public transport in Gwynedd, 19 involved commercial services (70%) e.g. the Bethesda-Bangor bust

service timetable had been reduced (every 20 minutes rather than every 15), I/IA service timetable differs from the actual operation but is in

keeping with the register. See additional information leaflet.

82/83 bus from Bethel to Caernarfon was frequently late and so

workers arrived late to work. A complainant noted that if it isn't

late, it's early! Officers wre working with Bus Users Cymru to

monitor the service.

Traffic 1 Traffic01 Percentage of customers who said they were satisfied

with the level of service

Have not reported as final decision needs to be taken as to which measures the Unit will report on.

Street

works

1 Streetworks01 Perecentage of customers who responded to a survey

and who said they were satisfied with the level of

service

Have not reported as final decision needs to be taken as to which measures the Unit will report on.

Road Safety 1 RS1 Percentage of attendees who have learnt to be safer

on the roads as a result of the lesson/training

Since the last period, 519 customers who took part in Road Safety sessions were 100% happy with the service.

Following a Unit team meeting, the decision was made to work on creating a PowerPoint presentation for volunteers/assistants in order to explain the plan

and what exactly is expected of them. A decision was also made to update the plan's information leaflet, so that the principles are clearer. The Unit will then

be able to tick off that it has received the presentation, the Kerbcraft leaflet and has arranged DBS. We believe that there is great merit in providing training

for volunteers/assistants so that the plan works better when we take children out on the roads, by having more interaction between the children and

volunteers/assistants.

The Unit along with other Agencies have begun the "Elective" sessions for Year 9 and the "Core Group" sessions for Year 7, and a number of sessions have

been arranged for the end of the school term.

With regards to Pass Plus Cymru, the Unit has begun collaborating with Job Centres to try to encourage employers on their books to invest in their staff by

enrolling them on the course. Contact has also been made with the Adults, Health and Well-being Department and local companies in order to try to get

them to invest in their staff.

Pass Plus Cymru recruitment statistics were received recently, which showed that Gwynedd Council was ahead of other Councils in terms of recruitment,

which demonstrates that all the advertising was worthwhile. Following an article about Pass Plus Cymru session recently held with a sixth form, the BBC

expressed an interest in filming the Unit whilst it carried out training sessions, with the intention of making a programme.

The Unit has also collaborated with Mantell Gwynedd to encourage older people on its books to attend the "Live Well, Drive Well" session, and of course,

more information sessions are in the pipeline for the whole of Gwynedd.

In addition to the above activities, the Unit continues with the Road Safety Quiz, Story Bag; Road Safety Competitions; and Cycling training for pupils across
Finance and

Administrat

ive

1 F&A02 Percentage of customers who said they were satisfied

with the level of service

Period 1

April-May
MEASURING DETAILSINFORMATION ABOUT THE SERVICE

Period 2

June-July

P
age 43



CYNGOR GWYNEDD 
 

Cyswllt: 

01286 679729    01286 679490 

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

REPORT TO A MEETING OF GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET 

 

Date of Meeting: 2 January, 2018 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor Gareth Thomas, 

Cabinet Member for Education 

Contact Officer: Iwan T. Jones, Corporate Director  

Contact Telephone No.: 01286 679685 

Title of Item: Education Performance Report 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1. The purpose of this report is to update you on what has been achieved in the 

field for which I, as Cabinet Member for Education, have responsibility. This will 

include outlining the latest with the pledges in the Strategic Plan; where the 

performance measures have reached; and the latest in terms of the savings and 

cuts schemes. 

 

1.2. I wish to remind you that all the matters have already been discussed and 

scrutinised in meetings of the management teams, which also included 

representatives from the scrutiny committee.  

 

1.3. On the whole, I am comfortable with the performance of the projects of the 

Council's Plan, however, I acknowledge that some elements of these projects 

have slipped. Some areas are receiving special attention by the Department in 

order to improve performance and these are the areas that I will keep an eye on 

over the coming months: 

 

 Raising Standards in the Foundation Phase (up to 7 years); 

 Ensuring that the principles of 'Education for Purpose for Gwynedd' are 

submitted to the Cabinet as soon as possible; 

 The Bangor Project - Working on the three preferred options for Bangor 

and submitting them to the Cabinet as soon as possible; 

 Bala Campus Project; 

 Re-profiling additional schools' savings. 

 

2. THE DECISION SOUGHT 

 

2.1.  The Cabinet is requested to approve re-profiling realising £263,000 of the 

"Additional Schools' Savings" scheme, which aimed to deliver £4.3m of savings 

during the period 2015/16 to 2018/19, by slipping £65,000 to be delivered in 

2021/22 and £198,000 to be delivered in 2020/21.  

  

Page 44

Agenda Item 6

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDING THE DECISION 

 

3.1. In order to ensure effective performance management and that we respond 

pro-actively to the need to achieve efficiency savings as expected.  

 

4. STRATEGIC PLAN PROJECTS 

 

4.1. P1 Improve and Reconcile Education Standards - Foundation Phase & Key Stage 

4 

 

4.1.1 The purpose of this project is to improve and reconcile education standards 

across Gwynedd in order to ensure that children and young people attain the 

highest standards so that they may gain qualifications and skills, by focusing on 

the Foundation Phase and KS4.  

 

4.1.2 Again this year, the figures of the Summer 2017 results show that 86.6% of children 

achieved the foundation phase indicator, namely the tests for 7 year olds. This 

figure is lower (74%) for children who receive free school meals. It is fair to say that 

these results are disappointing, especially in light of the regional and national 

results. It is believed that one or a combination of factors could have influenced 

the results, but there is no conclusive evidence to prove this at present. 

 

4.1.3 I have already asked the Education Department to analyse the situation and 

scrutinise why we have not seen improvement with this measure. The Education 

and Economy Scrutiny Committee has also expressed concern about the results 

of the Foundation Phase, the Department has therefore commissioned GwE to 

investigate the situation. 

 

4.1.4 As the results and performance of the Foundation Phase is a cross-regional issue, 

GwE has agreed to investigate the factors across the north. As the original brief 

has been extended to include the North Wales region, I have expressed my 

concern that this will have in impact on when we will receive the information 

about Gwynedd schools. I have emphasised that I wish to see a copy of GwE's 

report on the situation of the Foundation Phase in Gwynedd as soon as possible. I 

am also awaiting a clear work programme noting the short, medium and long-

term intervention needed to tackle the situation. 

 

4.1.5 I will elaborate on the results of Key Stage 4, namely GCSEs at 16 years old, in part 

five of the report - Measuring Performance. 

 

4.1.6 Although this project does not focus on A Level results and on the post-16 

situation in the County, I have emphasised that I am expecting the Department 

to submit a report to the Cabinet on the results, including vocational courses as 

soon as possible. 

 

4.2. P2 Improving Leadership and Management 

 

4.2.1 The purpose of this project is to improve the conditions for leadership in order to 

raise standards. We will implement proposals to improve leadership and 

management with the aim of moving towards the goal of having schools with 

non-contact headteachers, i.e. who do not teach children. 

 

4.2.2 The work of scoping options and opportunities to strengthen leadership is 

currently under way, and ties in with the work of consulting with schools and 

governors on the principles of 'Education for Purpose for Gwynedd' which took 

Page 45



place some months ago. I intend to present the findings to the Cabinet in March 

2018. 

 

4.2.3 Consequently, this project has focused on promoting and taking advantage of 

the support and training programmes provided to headteachers and 

prospective headteachers. This training includes national (Welsh Government) 

and regional (GwE) leadership programmes. A number of the headteachers 

have participated in the training sessions, and eight prospective leaders are 

following CPCP courses this year. 

 

4.2.4 I have expressed my wish to see a clear project plan and strong management 

arrangements for this project, so that we refine the project and address the 

challenge of strengthening and improving leadership in our schools. 

 

4.3. Programme for a network of viable schools for the future 

 

4.3.1 P3 Bangor Project 

 

The purpose of this project is to review primary education in Bangor in order to 

ensure sustainable future provision while responding specifically to the increase in 

demand for places in the Penrhosgarnedd area.  

 

Welsh Government has confirmed that they have set aside £6.3m to invest in the 

provision of education in the Bangor catchment area.    

 

A number of meetings have been held with the headteachers, governors and 

councillors in the area, and meetings have been held with the Catchment Area 

Review Committee (CARC). The purpose of the CARC is to identify and discuss 

options by giving local input to agree on a preferred option which will respond to 

future education needs in the area. 

 

The discussion has reached a situation where three options have been identified. 

The Department has invited observations on these options as part of a 

consultation in the area. The aim at present is to reach an agreement on one 

option soon, and I intend to submit this option to Cabinet in February.  

 

The Department has noted slippages with this plan as the original intention was to 

submit the favoured option in December. This means that the implementation 

timetable is tight, however, I have received confirmation from the Department 

that this slippage will not have an impact on the earmarked financial investment. 

(Welsh Government & Private Sector funding). 

 

I have also asked the Department to ensure that local members and members of 

the Education and Economy Scrutiny Committee are part of the discussions on 

these options. The report on the options will also be submitted to the Scrutiny 

Committee. 

 

4.3.2 P4 Y Gader Catchment Area - Ysgol Bro Idris 

 

The purpose of this project is to establish an All-through Catchment Area School 

for 3-16 year olds in the catchment area of Ysgol y Gader, Dolgellau.  

 

Ysgol Bro Idris was officially opened on 7 September 2017 following £4.34 million of 

capital expenditure. I will be keeping an eye on this school's measure of success 

and will be receiving feedback on this regularly.  

Page 46



 

4.3.3 P5 Ysgol Glancegin  

 

The purpose of this project is to secure an investment to provide a new building 

for Ysgol Glancegin, which is located in Maesgeirchen, Bangor.  

 

The new building was opened for 240 pupils (including 30 nursery spaces) in 

Maesgeirchen in September 2017. 

 

Recently, £60,000 of Flying Start funding has been approved to site an additional 

cabin for nursery age children in order to secure early years education on the 

estate.  

 

However, I understand that there has been some delay in transporting some of 

these cabins from the Dolgellau site to Maesgeirchen. I have had a discussion 

with the Property Service to ensure swift resolution to this in order to ensure that 

this does not affect the children's education in the area. 

 

4.3.4 P6 Ysgol y Berwyn Catchment Area - Bala Learning Campus 

 

The purpose of this project is to create a 3-19 Welsh-medium Learning Campus on 

the current site of Ysgol y Berwyn. 

 

This project is slipping as it was originally intended to open to Campus in 

September 2018. Following input from head teachers, Governors and the 

catchment area's local members, it was concluded that it would be more 

practical to open the campus in September 2019. This will allow adequate time 

to undertake the work associated with establishing the school as an entity. 

 

On 24 October, the Cabinet approved to carry out a statutory consultation to 

close Ysgol y Berwyn, Ysgol Beuno Sant and Ysgol Bro Tegid on 31 August 2018, 

and establish a 3-19 Learning Campus on the existing Ysgol y Berwyn site to open 

on 1 September 2019. The consultation will come to an end on 10 January. 

 

Despite the slippage, this will not have an impact on the construction timetable, 

and it is anticipated the new facilities will be available to local residents from 

September 2018. I am eager for the Department to establish clear arrangements 

for the school's community purpose, namely the Library and Leisure element.   

 

The Department is also working closely with Ysgol Bro Tegid, Ysgol Beuno Sant and 

Ysgol y Berwyn and their governing bodies to establish a transition plan for the 

town's primary schools. 

 

The timetable for the school is very tight and consequently, I will be keeping a 

close eye on this project over the next crucial months.  

 

4.3.5 P7 Transforming the Provision of Additional Learning Needs and Inclusion 

 

The purpose of this project is to transform the service for children with additional 

learning needs.   

 

In accordance with the resolution, a Strategy for Additional Learning Needs and 

Inclusion will be implemented fully from September 2017, jointly with Anglesey.  

 

Page 47



The work of restructuring the service has now come to an end, and has affected 

126 members of staff across the two authorities and ALN Joint Committee, which 

came to an end in August 2017. There are a number of empty assistant posts 

which will need to be appointed to the posts in the next few weeks. A huge 

challenge is facing the schools in terms of assistants with the relevant skills, and 

the situation is worse in some areas.  

 

The Early Years field has been raised as an issue that needs specific attention 

because the earlier these conditions are identified, the sooner the provision and 

proper support can be given to the child. This is a matter to be discussed with the 

Children and Supporting Families Department and we are eager for this to be 

woven into the Family Support Strategy that the Department is currently working 

on. 

 

4.3.6 P9 Young People using the Welsh language socially 

 

The purpose of this project is to ensure a robust follow-up and to build upon the 

Language Charter’s success that is operational in Gwynedd's primary schools.  

 

A Secondary Sector Language Strategy was formed and adopted. Input to the 

Strategy was received by secondary learners of various linguistic backgrounds, 

including native Welsh speakers, fluent learners, and learners with a more basic 

proficiency. The purpose of the strategy is to set clear expectations and 

directions for the county's secondary schools on the techniques of changing 

language habits and the different ways of influencing on the pupils' social 

language within and outside the school. 

 

Each school has drawn up a self-evaluation and an action plan in response to 

the Strategy, and these plans are going through the challenge process. 

 

A #Conference was held for representatives of the School/Language Council at 

each secondary school in Gwynedd during the autumn. The purpose of the 

#Conference was to prepare young people to discuss the Welsh language and 

to identify activities that they would be eager to hold in order to promote the 

Welsh language amongst their peers. 

 

5. MEASURING PERFORMANCE 

 

5.1. Performance Measures  

 

5.1.1 I attach a copy of the Department's measures in Appendix 1.  

 

5.2. Summer 2017 Results 

 

5.2.1 Primary Sector: 

 

Foundation Phase (7 years old) 

 

As I have already noted, under project P1, the results of the Foundation Phase 

are disappointing this year and show a decrease to 86.6% compared with 2016.  

This places places Gwynedd in position 15 out of 22 authorities, which is a lower 

position than last year. I am awaiting a further report on the situation and what 

we can do to improve the results. 

 

Key Stage 2 (up to 11 years old) 

Page 48



 

A very good performance was seen in Key Stage 2, with a significant increase of 

2.3% on the 2016 results which resulted in Gwynedd being in first place in the 

North Wales region. The attainment results of children who receive free school 

meals (FSM) were 85.2% - the best result to date. The best performance to date 

was also seen across all subjects. An assessment guide was distributed to all 

schools in January 2017, and I feel that the response of schools and their use of 

this has had a positive impact on assessment and has improved consistency.  

 

5.2.2 Secondary Sector: 

 

Key Stage 3 (11-14 years old) 

 

A strong performance was seen once again this year, with Gwynedd schools 

ranked at the top of the region's schools for the Core Subject Indicator, which is 

the expected level for Welsh or English, Mathematics and Science (92.8%). 

 

Key Stage 4 (14-16 years old - GCSE) 

 

The performance of Key Stage 4 and GCSE results was disappointing this year, as 

there was a drop. These results reflect the National drop. 

 

The percentage of pupils who attained five GCSE *A-C grades, including Welsh, 

English and Mathematics was 58.3% in Gwynedd this year. Although this figure is 

lower than last year (65.9%) Gwynedd's performance continues to be in 1st 

position in the north Wales Region and 5th at a national level, the expected 

position.   

 

The main reason for the drop is the changes to the examination process and 

syllabus for subjects such as Mathematics and English which has had a significant 

impact on GCSE results this year in Wales, especially in regards to *A-C grades. It 

is therefore difficult and unfair to compare this year's figures with the 2016 results. 

 

Despite this, the percentage of pupils who are entitled to free school meals and 

who attained five GCSE *A-C grades, including Welsh, English and Mathematics 

was 45.4%, compared to 26.2% at a north Wales regional level. This again reflects 

the emphasis given to ensure that every young person in the county succeeds.  

 

I am yet to receive the results of Looked After Children and I have pressed on the 

Department to ensure that I receive them before they are scrutinised at the 

Corporate Parent Panel. 

 

A level: 

 

The situation with A Level results is encouraging this year. The percentage who 

attained grades *A-E across all subjects (97.3%) was an increase compared to 

2016 (96.2%).  In addition, there was an established increase in the percentage 

that gained grades A or better (25.5%) one higher than the figure for Wales 

(25.0%) and it is encouraging that A*-E percentage was 100% across the majority 

of subjects and this reflects the advice and guidance provided to our young 

people.  

 

5.2.3 Attendance & Exclusions: 

 

Page 49



Although these figures are  management data in effect, I am eager to share 

them with you as there is a clear link between the attainment levels of children 

and young people and their school attendance. 

 

The attendance percentage for Primary and Secondary Schools is exceptional, 

which places us amongst the highest in Wales. Despite this, I am aware that there 

are pockets of the County where attendance is challenging and I have asked 

the Department to target those schools. 

 

I am also proud to note that there were no exclusions in our schools during the 

year.  

 

5.2.4 Categorisation Data and Inspections: 

 

I attach a copy of the categorisation data and inspections in Appendix 2. The 

main matter I want to raise with you is the latest situation in regards to Ysgol 

Rhosgadfan which was placed in special measure by Estyn in July 2017. The 

department has confirmed that great steps have been taken to improve the 

school, with an improvement in the management structure and governors. A 

discussion is required about the long-term leadership options for the school. 

 

6. FINANCIAL/SAVINGS SITUATION 

 

6.1. It is anticipated that £358,816 (86%) of the Education Department's savings for 

2017/18 will be timely achieved, with £58,000 which remains of the scheme to 

raise a fee for childcare element within the Breakfast scheme, slipping to 2018/19. 

Following a delay in implementation. The Department has deferred this 

shortcoming until 2018/19, along with £38,681 of the "Ffordd Gwynedd - Payroll 

and Contracts Unit " which has slipped from 2016/17 following the expansion of 

the original aim.  

 

6.2. Up to now, £3,738,010 has been realised from the 'School Efficiency Savings' 

scheme, which aims to realise £4.3m of savings in the period 2015/16 to 2018/19. 

The Cabinet has previously decided to bridge £298,990 from the scheme until 

2019/20, where it is anticipated that the sum will be realisied.  Also, the delay from 

establishing the new school in Bala means that it will not be possible to realise the 

£65,000 saving until 2021/22. There will  also be a  delay in realising further savings 

of £198,000. In light of reduced grant funding from Welsh Government to schools 

in 2018/19, it would be difficult to reduce the quantum for schools this year in 

order to realise the savings. 

  

6.3. Therefore, I’m asking the Cabinet to re-profile £65,000 of savings from Y Bala to 

2021/22, and the remaining £198,000 to 2020/21 in order to give the Department 

time to develop their ideas and realised these savings  

 

6.4. On the whole, I do not anticipate a problem in realising the remainder of the 

savings schemes for 2018/19. 

 

7. ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING THE DECISION 

 

7.1. Views of the Statutory Officers: 

 

i. Monitoring Officer: 

 

“No Comments from a propriety perspective” 

Page 50



 

ii. Head of Finance Department: 

 

“I confirm that the observations noted in part 6 of the report are a true 

representation of the situation in terms of realising Education/Schools’ savings. 
 

Given the circumstances (Welsh Government to reduce specific school grants by 

2018/19), I will re-profile £263,000 of the 2018/19 savings within the Council’s Financial 

Strategy (£65,000 to be realised in 2021/22 and £198,000 to be realised in 2020/21); 

pending the Cabinet’s approval of the recommendation made in part 2.1 of the 

report with regards to a part of the £4.3m school savings. 

 

I also note that part 4.3 of the report refers to progress with some of the Council’s 

main capital schemes, namely ‘21st Century Schools’ which is up-to-date for the 

Gader Catchment Area, Berwyn Catchment Area, Ysgol Glancegin and schools in 

Bangor.” 

 

7.2. Views of the Local Member: 

 

7.2.1 Not a local matter. 

 

7.3. Results of Any Consultation: 

 

7.3.1 None to note. 

 

 

 

Appendices: 

 

Appendix 1 Education Department Measures 

Appendix 2 School Inspections Data and Categorisation 

 

Background Documents: 

 

None. 

 

Page 51



APPENDIX 1 
 

EDUCATION DEPARTMENT MEASURES 

PRIMARY: 

Foundation Phase - Pupils aged 5 to 7 years old. Children are assessed when they are 7 years old. 

Key Stage 2 - Pupils aged 8-11 years old. Children are assessed when they are 11 years old. 

MEASURE 

 

2014-15 

Summer 2015 

Performance 

2015-16 

Summer 2016 

Performance 

2016-17 

Summer 2017 

Performance 

Foundation Phase:  Foundation Phase Indicator  

Percentage of pupils assessed at end of the Foundation Phase, aged 7, who reach the expected 

level  

 

86.8% 86.8% 86.6% 

Foundation Phase: Foundation Phase Indicator of Free School Meals learners 

Percentage of free school meals pupils assessed at the end of the Foundation Phase, aged 7, 

who reach the expected level 

 

75.7% 76.6% 74.0% 

Key Stage 2 - Core Subject Indicator (CSI)  

Percentage of the pupils assessed at the end of year 6, aged 11, who reach the expected level, 

which is level 4, in English or Welsh, Mathematics and Science. 

 

89.5% 89.8% 92.1% 

Key Stage 2 - Core Subject Indicator (CSI) of Free School Meals learners  

Percentage of FSM pupils assessed at the end of year six, aged 11, who reach the expected 

level, which is level 4, in English or Welsh, Mathematics and Science. 

 

75.7% 82.1% 85.2% 

Percentage of pupil attendance at primary schools in the academic year. 

 

95.19% 95.45% 95.3% 

Number of permanent exclusions in primary schools in the academic year. 3 0 0 

P
age 52



SECONDARY: 

Key Stage 3: Pupils aged 11-14 years old. Pupils are assessed when they are 14 years old. 

Key Stage 4: Pupils aged 14-16 years old. The pupils are assessed aged 16 years old. 

MEASURE 

 

2014-15 

Summer 2015 

Performance 

2015-16 

Summer 2016 

Performance 

2016-17 

Summer 2017 

Performance 

Key Stage 3 - Core Subject Indicator (CSI) - percentage of pupils assessed at the end of year 9, 

aged 14, who reach the expected level, which is Level 5, in Welsh or English, Mathematics and 

Science. 

 

91.3% 92.0% 92.8% 

Key Stage 3 - Core Subject Indicator (CSI) FSM Learners - percentage of FSM Pupils assessed at 

the end of year 9, aged 14, who reach the expected level, which is Level 5, in Welsh or English, 

Mathematics and Science. 

 

78.1% 82.1% 84.9% 

Key Stage 3 - percentage of pupils who receive a Teacher Assessment in Welsh (first language) 

at the end of Key Stage 3. 

 

78.1% 82.1% 84.9% 

Key Stage 4 - Core Subject Indicator (CSI) - percentage of pupils aged 16 who attain Grade C or 

above, in Welsh or English, Mathematics and Science. 

 

62.4% 64.4% 46.2% 

Key Stage 4 - Level 1 Threshold FSM- percentage of FSM pupils aged 16 who attain 5 GCSE 

grades D to G.   

 

97% 100% To be 

confirmed 

Key Stage 4 - Level 1 Threshold - percentage of pupils aged 16 who attain 5 GCSE grades D to G.   97.9% 97.3% 96.0% 

Key Stage 4 - Threshold Level 2 - percentage of pupils aged 16 who attain 5 GCSE grades A* to 

C.   

88.9% 85.9% 70.7% 

P
age 53



 

Key Stage 4 - Threshold Level 2+ FSM - percentage of FSM pupils aged 15 (on 31 August of the 

previous year) who attain 5 GCSE grades A* to C, including Welsh first language or English, and 

Mathematics.   

 

31.8% 42.4% To be 

confirmed 

Key Stage 4 - Threshold Level 2+ - percentage of pupils aged 15 (on 31 August of the previous 

year) who attain 5 GCSE grades A* to C, including Welsh first language or English, and 

Mathematics.   

 

63.3% 65.9% 58.0% 

Key Stage 4 - Threshold Level 2 FSM - percentage of FSM pupils aged 16 Level who attain 5 

GCSE grades A* to C.   

 

 

  To be 

confirmed 

Number of permanent exclusions in secondary schools in the academic year. 

 

3 2 0 

Percentage of pupil attendance at secondary schools in the academic year. 

 

95.19% 95.45% 95.3% 

Percentage of young people aged 16-18 who are not in employment, education or training. 

 

1.8% 1% To be 

confirmed 

 

P
age 54



Appendix 2 

 

SCHOOL CATEGORISATION AND INSPECTION DATA 

DRAFT CATEGORISATION – GWYNEDD PRIMARY SCHOOLS 2017 – 18 

 

 Gwynedd : Primary Cat: Estyn Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 CC 

Dyffryn Ogwen      

1 Bodfeurig   A  ED 

2 Penybryn, Bethesda   A  OH 

3 Llanllechid   A  GJ 

4 Rhiwlas, Bangor   B * BJ 

5 Abercaseg, Bethesda   A  OH 

6 Tregarth   A  ED 

Brynrefail      

1 Gwaun Gynfi   B * GJ 

2 Llanrug   A  GJ 

3 Bethel   A  ED 

4 Cwm y Glo   B  OH 

5 Dolbadarn   A  DE 

6 Penisarwaun    B * ED 

7 Waunfawr   B * GJ 

Dyffryn Nantlle      

1 Bro Llifon   B * DE 

2 Brynaerau   A  BJ 

3 Llanllyfni   B  IJ 

4 Baladeulyn   C  GJ 

5 Nebo   B  GJ 

6 Bro Lleu   A  ED 

7 Talysarn   A  BJ 

Friars/Tryfan      

1 Glanadda   C  OH 

2 Glancegin   B ? MP 

Page 55



3 Babanod Coedmawr   B  OH 

4 Garnedd   A  OH 

5 Felinheli   B * SG 

6 Hirael   B * SG 

7 Faenol   A  GJ 

8 Llandygai   B * ED 

9 Cae Top   A  OH 

10 Ein Harglwyddes   B  LF 

Syr Hugh Owen      

1 Gelli   B  SG 

2 Felinwnda   B * BJ 

3 Rhosgadfan MA  D  IG 

4 Rhostryfan   B  ED 

5 Hendre    A  SG 

6 Bontnewydd   A  GJ 

7 Maesincla   B * OH 

8 Llandwrog   B * BJ 

9 Santes Helen   B  LF 

Tywyn      

1 Craig y Deryn   B  BEJ 

2 Dyffryn Dulas   B *? MJ 

3 Penybryn   B * OH 

4 Pennal   B *? MJ 

Gader      

1 Bro Idris   C  DL a BJ (c) 

Moelwyn      

1 Bro Cynfal ME  B  CFfR 

2 Edmwnd Prys   B  CFfR 

3 Manod   B * CFfR 

4 Tanygrisiau    C  BJ 

5 Bro Hedd Wyn   B  IJ 

6 Maenofferen   A  CFfR 

Berwyn      

Page 56



1 Bro Tegid   B * IJ 

2 O.M.Edwards   A  IJ 

3 Bro Tryweryn   A  IJ 

4 Ffridd y Llyn   A  IJ 

5 Beuno Sant   B * IJ 

Ardudwy      

1 Traeth   B * CFfR 

2 Dyffryn Ardudwy   B  BJ 

3 Llanbedr ME  B  BJ 

4 Garreg   B * MP 

5 Cefn Coch   A  CFfR 

6 Talsarnau   B  CFfR 

7 Tan y Castell    B * DE 

Glan y Mor      

1 Abererch   A  BJ 

2 Chwilog   B * MP 

3 Bro Plenydd   B * MP 

4 Llanaelhaearn   C/B melyn? RhW 

5 Llanbedrog   A */gwyrdd? RhW 

6 Llangybi    B  BJ 

7 Pentreuchaf   A */gwyrdd? RhW 

8 Eifl   B  GJ 

9 Cymerau   B * DE 

Botwnnog      

1 Nefyn   A  DE 

2 Abersoch   C  IJ 

3 Crud y Werin   B  RhW 

4 Edern   B * MP 

5 Babanod Morfa Nefyn   A  RhW 

6 Sarn Bach   B  RhW 

7 Tudweiliog   B  MP 

8 Pont y Gof   A  MP 

9 Foelgron   B  MJ 

Page 57



Eifionydd      

1 Beddgelert   B * BJ 

2 Borth y Gest   B * RhW 

3 Treferthyr   B  CFfR 

4 Garndolbenmaen    B * RhW 

5 Eifion Wyn   A  CFfR 

6 Gorlan   B * RhW 

7 Llanystumdwy   B * MP 

 

Page 58



GWYNEDD SCHOOL INSPECTIONS DATA - SINCE JANUARY 2015 

School Sector Date of 
Inspection 

Key Question 1  
 

Key Question 2 Key Question 3 Current 
Performance 

Prospects for 
Improvement 

Sequence>Current situation  

Coedmawr Primary Spring 2015 Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate Estyn Monitoring>out of category 

Dolgellau Primary Spring 2015 Adequate Adequate Unsatisfactory Adequate Unsatisfactory Special Measures>out of category 

Bro Plennydd Primary Spring 2015 Good Good Good Good Good Authority Monitoring> 
Tanygrisiau Primary Spring 2015 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up 

Ffridd y Llyn Primary Spring 2015 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up 
Traeth Primary Spring 2015 Good Good Good Good Good Authority Monitoring>out of category 

Llanaelhaearn Primary Summer 2015 Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate Estyn Monitoring>out of category 
Llanrug Primary Summer 2015 Good Good Good Good Good Authority Monitoring>out of category 

Llanelltyd  Primary Summer 2015 Good Good Good Good Good Authority Monitoring>out of category 
Beddgelert Primary Summer 2015 Good Good Good Good Good Authority Monitoring>out of category 

Hirael Primary Summer 2015 Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate Estyn Monitoring>out of category  

Morfa Nefyn Primary Autumn 2015 Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding Authority Monitoring>out of category 

Foelgron Primary Autumn 2015 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up 
Garndolbenmaen Primary Autumn 2015 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up 

Pont y Gof Primary Autumn 2015 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up 

Cymerau Primary Spring 2016 Good Good  Good Good Good Authority Monitoring>out of category  

Nefyn  Primary Spring 2016 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up 
Manod  Primary Spring 2016 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up  

Llanllechid Primary Spring 2016 Good Good Outstanding Good Outstanding No follow up  

Craig y Deryn Primary Spring 2016 Good Good Good Good Good Authority Monitoring>out of category 

Waunfawr  Primary Summer 2016  Good Good Good Good Good No follow up  
Bro Cynfal Primary Summer 2016 Adequate  Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate  Estyn Monitoring> 

Cae Top Primary Summer 2016  Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding No follow up 

Bodfeurig Primary Autumn 2016 Good Good Outstanding Good Outstanding No follow up  

Llanbedr Primary Autumn 2016 Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate Estyn Monitoring> 
Maenofferen Primary Autumn 2016 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up 

Rhiwlas Primary Autumn 2016 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up  

Borth y Gest Primary Autumn 2016 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up 
Penybryn, Tywyn Primary Autumn 2016 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up 

Talysarn Primary Spring 2017 Good Good Outstanding Good Outstanding No follow up  
Bro Hedd Wyn Primary Spring 2017 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up 

Bontnewydd Primary Spring 2017 Good Good Outstanding Good Outstanding No follow up 

Eifion Wyn Primary Spring 2017 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up 
Llanllyfni Primary Spring 2017 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up  

Bro Tegid Primary Summer 2017 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up 

Felinwnda Primary Summer 2017 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up 
         

P
age 59



School Sector Date of 
Inspection 

Key Question 1  
 

Key Question 2 Key Question 3 Current 
Performance 

Prospects for 
Improvement 

Sequence>Current situation  

Dyffryn Nantlle Secondary Spring 2015 Unsatisfactory Adequate Unsatisfactory Unsatisfactory Unsatisfactory Mesurau Arbennig>allan o gategori 

Gader Secondary Spring 2015 Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate Adequate Substantial Improvement>out of 
category   

Syr Hugh Owen Secondary Spring 2016 Adequate Good Good Adequate Good Estyn Monitoring>out of category 

Glan y Môr Secondary Spring 2017 Good Good Good Good Good No follow up  

 

 

P
age 60



GWYNEDD COUNCIL CABINET 

 

 

 

 
Cyswllt: 

01286 679868 

01286 679490 

cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

6  

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update my fellow members on what has been 

achieved in the fields within my remit as Deputy Leader. This includes 

outlining the latest developments of promises within the Council's Plan; 

where we have reached with measuring performance; and the latest in 

terms of the savings and cuts schemes. 

 

1.2 I will remind you that all matters have already been the subject of 

discussions and have been scrutinised at a meeting of the Corporate 

Support Department, which also included a representation from the 

Scrutiny Committee. 

 

1.3 On the whole, I am happy with the progress of the Strategic Plan's projects 

and the performance measures for which I am responsible. 

 

  

Report to a meeting of Gwynedd Council Cabinet 

 

Date: 2 January 2018 

Title of Item: Performance Report of the Deputy Leader 

Purpose: To accept and note the information in the report 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Mair Rowlands 

Contact Officer: Dilwyn Williams, Chief Executive 

  

Page 60

Agenda Item 7

mailto:cabinet@gwynedd.llyw.cymru


2      THE DECISION SOUGHT 

2.1 To accept and note the information in the report. 

 

3       THE REASON FOR THE NEED FOR A DECISION 

3.1 In order to ensure effective performance management. 

 

4 STRATEGIC PLAN PROJECTS  

 

Poverty, Economy, Housing 

 

4.1 T2 Keeping the Benefit Local  

 

4.1.1 I explained to you in my previous report on 5 September that I will not be 

reporting on this project separately anymore, as the work is part of the 

department's core responsibilities. Nevertheless, the measures that are 

relevant to the work have been included at the beginning of Appendix 1, 

and I would like to draw your attention to the fact that we now report on 

revenue expenditure only, and exclude capital expenditure. In future, I will 

also be keeping an eye on the results of our savings plans, and that they do 

not lead to too many changes to our aim of buying locally. 

 

The Welsh Language 

 

4.2 I1 Communities promoting the Welsh Language 

 

4.2.1 This project is still ongoing in the communities of Bangor, Dolgellau and 

Porthmadog/Pwllheli; a summary of the main activities can be seen below. 

Activities in the four areas have been divided under three main headings, 

namely 1) Children and Young People, 2) The Community, 3) Business. You 

are reminded that the work programme for this project has been agreed 

jointly with Welsh Government which funds the work via Hunaniaith. 

 

4.2.2  County developments  

 

A Business Officer has been appointed to work jointly between Hunaniaith 

and Menter Iaith Môn, to work specifically with businesses. The post is 

financed by a grant from the Government, and is part of a scheme that is 

implemented and co-ordinated by Mentrau Iaith Cymru. A conference was 

held for representatives of every secondary school in Gwynedd to discuss 

ideas on how young people could promote the use of the Welsh language 

amongst their peers. A training session was also held for employees that hold 

activities for pre-school aged children and their parents in the community. 

 

4.2.2 Bangor 

The progress on Bangor's work programme for this period has been slow as 

a result of the Development Officer's absence, but three pieces of work 

have been commissioned for three fields of work, and sessions have been 

organised to disseminate information about the Magi Ann and Selog apps 
Page 61



(Mentrau Iaith characters for young children) to Bangor schools, outdoor 

sessions for Ysgol Tryfan pupils and a seminar has been organised for the 

city's primary care providers (a follow-up of work from earlier on in the year). 

 

4.2.3 Dolgellau 

The work with children and young people includes – 

Dolgellau's Entertainment Initiative (MAD) is still active in the community, 

and it held a successful gig in October, which 81 young people under 18 

years old attended. Representatives also shared their experiences as part 

of a conference organised by Hunaniaith for young people. The 

organisation's members were also present at the Train the Trainer Session 

which prepares young people to be leaders and role models by enabling 

them to hold language awareness sessions for their peers. Sessions were also 

held to increase the use of the Welsh language at the local Guides group, 

including sharing resources such as vocabulary and poster templates with 

the leader, who is a learner, in order to improve her ability to provide 

bilingually, and organise activities such as a workshop to create lanterns for 

the group. 

The work with the local community includes organising a guided walk to 

celebrate the Shwmae Su'mae Day, contributing towards the Halloween 

Fun day, and a Dolgellau Partnership Meeting was held to share information 

about the Community Translation Scheme, which led to booking the service 

for a series of five meetings up to March 2018. Much work was also done to 

share information and resources with local businesses. 

 

4.2.4 Porthmadog/Pwllheli 

The work with the local community includes holding a successful evening of 

entertainment at the Golf Club in Pwllheli with Wil Tân, which approximately 

75 local residents attended. The club has expressed an interest in staging 

further evenings with Welsh artists. A coffee morning was held to note the 

“Su'mae Day” at the Centre, Porthmadog, and 19 learners and six first 

language speakers attended the event. There was effective collaboration 

with Coleg Meirion Dwyfor Welsh for Adults and also Merched y Wawr. 

The work with business and tourism includes sharing information and 

guidance with two tourism businesses to increase use of the Welsh 

language, namely The Golden Fleece Inn, Tremadog and the Tudor Lodge, 

Porthmadog. Presentations were given to Porthmadog and Dolbenmaen 

Town Council to discuss ways they can promote the Welsh language in their 

communities and to share information about the Community Translation 

Scheme. 

 

4.3 I2 - The Welsh language and public services 

 

4.3.1 Due to internal staffing circumstances and the fact that the Public Services 

Board have not yet established its well-being plan, there was no significant 

progress. As the officer who has been leading this project within the Council 
Page 62



on behalf of the Public Services Board has retired, I have asked for a 

confirmation in regards to the project's leadership for the future. 

 

4.4 I4 Audit of the Welsh Language’s situation at Gwynedd Council 

 

4.4.1 There had been little progress in recent months due to the internal staffing 

situation. Nevertheless, a number of language awareness sessions have 

been held, questionnaires about needs have been shared, and discussions 

have been held to plan suitable training. 

 

4.4.2 I agree with the Welsh Language Unit's intention to use the time now to 

assess the existing action methods in order to be able to see results sooner, 

and to plan appropriate training based on the audit's results, working across 

the Council and not within specific departments only. 

 

4.4.3 I would like to note that the work of developing the Language Strategy is 

ongoing. As part of this work, there will be an opportunity to set a 

requirement on the Council's departments to create action plans that will 

show their commitment to develop the use of the Welsh language - 

internally and externally. 

 

Delivering the Plan 

 

4.5 FfG1 Implementing the Ffordd Gwynedd Project 

 

4.5.1 The review within the Highways and Municipal Department and the 

Maritime Service is ongoing, and we are beginning to see the fruits of the 

labour. What's important is that the changes to our methods of working 

have led to better outcomes for the people of Gwynedd. 

 

4.5.2 Before changing the methods of working, dangerous faults in the 

Meirionnydd area used to be repaired within an average of 15.5 days (with 

a range of 0 to 49 days), but now the average is 1.1 days (with a range of 0 

to 5.4). One key lesson that was learnt with this work was that the Central 

Unit needs to consider whether we are becoming over-dependent on the 

staff who work on the Ffordd Gwynedd scheme to hold the reviews, and in 

future, would it be better to expect the managers within the departments 

to lead on holding service reviews, especially after receiving the ‘Leaders 

Development Programme' training? 

 

4.5.3 In addition, two further reviews have just commenced in the Registration 

Section within the Environment Department and the Income and Welfare 

Section within the Adults, Health and Well-being Department. A further 

review will take place within the Leisure Department over the coming 

months and within the Planning and Building Control Services before the 

end of 2017/18. I will update you on their developments in future reports. 

 

4.5.4 We have now commenced training sessions for the Council's Managers, 

and 70 had attended by the end of the calendar year. These sessions will 

mean that all Council managers will have been immersed in the principles 

of Ffordd Gwynedd, ensuring that they all have an understanding of the Page 63



relevant concepts and what they can do to disseminate the mindset within 

their units. The intention is that all Managers will have completed the course 

by the end of 2017/18. 

 

4.6 FfG2 Leaders Development Programme 

 

This programme is for developing leadership within the Council on a 

Cabinet member level and on a Senior Officer level within the Council. 

 

4.6.1 In terms of the members, five members of the Cabinet have been taking 

advantage of the coaching sessions whilst one Cabinet member (and three 

other members) are following the Leading Wales programme. It is intended 

to hold a workshop with all Cabinet members soon in order to introduce 

them to the concept of “The five behaviours of a cohesive team”. 

 

4.6.2 Work is also ongoing in an attempt to establish a brief definition of what is 

meant by "leadership" here in Gwynedd and, by the next meeting, we will 

certainly be able to report further on this. 

 

4.7 FfG3 Communication and Engagement  

 

I am glad that the Youth Participation Group is in the process of being 

established, which will be working with young people who are already 

members of our Youth Panel; it will strengthen the contribution of those who 

are being looked after, and will ensure that the voice of children and young 

people is heard. 

 

4.7.1 I am satisfied with the department's performance when offering a service 

to support the Council's Departments that engage with the people of 

Gwynedd (a score of 9 or 10 as Appendix 1 notes). I am also satisfied that 

the Communication Department will delay its audit into the ability of the rest 

of the Council's Departments to take responsibility for themselves for 

engagement plans until 2018/19. This will ensure a fair amount of time will be 

given in order for the Ffordd Gwynedd principles to filter through the 

workforce. 

 

4.8 FfG4 Extending the use of self-service 

 

4.8.1 I am very happy that the Cabinet accepted the Self-Service Business 

Projects Plan in our meeting on 3 October. Since then, on 13 November, a 

number of services were seen to be available to residents by getting in 

touch or ordering on on-line accounts. These include re-ordering garden 

waste collections or paying for school dinners. By now, we have 34,488 

accounts compared to 22,647 in October 2016, and I would like to 

acknowledge the work of our staff at the call centre, Galw Gwynedd, for 

their help in sharing information and assisting our residents to move to using 

on-line self-service. 

 

4.8.2 More services will be available via the self-service method in the new year. 

I will have more information to report to you in my next report, and I look 

Page 64



forward to seeing the number of people who use the self-service systems 

increasing. 

 

Financial Planning 

4.9 CA4 Further efficiencies and service provision models 

 

4.9.1 At our meeting on 3 October, the Cabinet accepted an Alternative Cabinet 

Model in order to Provide Leisure Facilities. Further details on how we can 

realise the plan will be submitted to the Cabinet at the beginning of 2018. 

 

 

5 PERFORMANCE 

 

5.1 A full report on the performance measures associated with the portfolio is 

provided in Appendix 1.  I am responsible for remits within the Corporate 

Support Department in addition to the Legal Service.  

 

5.2 Health, Safety and Well-being Service – A substantial increase has been 

made over the years on the management of health and safety within the 

Council. Nevertheless, it is essential as a result of transforming Services etc. 

that managers have received appropriate training to identify and manage 

risks, and there are some managers who have still not attended training. 

Health and safety training is not optional. All Departments are required to 

ensure that managers who manage significant risks have attended training. 

This matter will receive attention within the Council's employment capability 

framework in order to ensure that any manager who does not attend and 

/ or does not take action once they have received the appropriate training 

is held to account. 

 

5.3 Galw Gwynedd and Siopau Gwynedd Units provide prompt and accurate 

assistance for customers to access Council services by providing answers, 

guidance and service. 

 

5.4 The measure of Percentage and score of less than 10 noted with the service 

provided when contacting the Council by calling Galw Gwynedd was 

discussed, and the percentage that had been given a score of less than 10 

has fallen from 28% to 25%.  Nevertheless, 9% of these was given a score of 

1 but with no explanation (electronic questionnaire). Without us knowing the 

nature of the complaint, it is very difficult for us to improve the service for 

the future. 

 

5.5 It is very encouraging that Galw Gwynedd has nearly reached its target of 

answering telephone calls within 40 seconds on average. The performance 

has improved since April, and the current average is 41 seconds. 

 

5.6 Of the 666,820 individuals who visited the Council’s website between 1 July 

and 31 October this year, 580 completed the satisfaction questionnaire. 

Compared to the results of the period between 1 April and 30 June, the 

percentage that had given a score of 5 out of 5 had increased from 72% to 

86% and the percentage that was unsatisfied with the website fell from 24% 

Page 65



to 12.5%. What's also important of course, is that 100% of the enquiries that 

reach us through the website have either been resolved (and 79% of those 

within 24 hours) or are in the process of being resolved. 

 

5.7 The Procurement Unit enables the Council to focus on value for money and 

keeping the benefit local within the procurement field. Some progress has 

been seen in the measures measuring local expenditure over the past two 

years with the Percentage of the Council's procurement expenditure 

awarded to companies with its headquarters or a branch in Gwynedd and 

local expenditure through sub-contracts has increased to 62% in the second 

quarter of 2017/18 compared with 59% during the same quarter in 2016/17. 

Moreover, we have well exceeded our target of achieving procurement 

savings in the business case management category by 150%. 

 

5.8 However, when discussing the measure, I agreed that there was a need to 

keep an eye on the situation so that the savings requirements we have as a 

Council do not lead to a decline in our procurement expenditure with local 

companies.  

 

5.9 Having challenged the performance of the Legal Service I am happy with 

the progress of the work. The Service provides more agreement work to 

Cartrefi Cymunedol Gwynedd, and this work brings income with it. 

 

5.10 I am also glad to be able to confirm that the Electoral Commission has 

determined that we have reached the required standard in administrating 

Local Government elections and the 2017 General Election. 

 

5.11 Over the past four years, within the field of Information Management we 

have seen a decrease in the cases of misdirecting information, however we 

have seen a small increase this year. By challenging performance, it was 

noted that there were many reasons but I have asked the Unit to consider 

whether it would be possible to take steps to overcome some of the reasons 

and for us to have a discussion about this at our next performance meeting. 

 

5.12 Of course, only the main performance matters are noted above. Whilst I 

have had detailed discussion on various other matters within the different 

units, I am satisfied that the performance of the rest of these units are within 

the expected performance range. 

 

6 FINANCIAL POSITION / SAVINGS  

 

6.1 Every Department's savings plans for 2017/18 have been realised, and no 

problems are anticipated for realising the two plans identified for 2018/19. 

Work is currently in progress within the Department to look at options should 

there be a need for further savings from 2019/20 onwards. 

 

7 NEXT STEPS AND TIMETABLE 

 

7.1 None to note. 

 

 
Page 66



8 ANY CONSULTATIONS UNDERTAKEN PRIOR TO RECOMMENDING THE DECISION 

 

8.1 Views of the Statutory Officers: 

 

i. Monitoring Officer: 

 

No observations in terms of propriety. 

 

ii. Head of Finance Department: 

 

I can confirm that the comments in section 6 of the report are a correct 

reflection of the situation to realise the savings plans: that is, that the 

Corporate Support Department have realised their plans for 2017/18 and 

are ‘on track’ to realise the two plans identified for 2018/19. 

 

8.2 Views of the Local Member: 

 

8.2.1 Not a local matter. 

 

8.3 Results of Any Consultation: 

 

8.3.1 None to note. 

 

Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 – Performance Measures 

 

 

Page 67



Appendix 1 

Measure – definition 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2016-17 

Procurement  

1. The percentage of procurement savings target for the business case management category that have been completed 

(Target of £2.3m over the 2014/15 - 2018/19 period) 

- - 44% 

(£1.01m/£

2.3m) 

150% 

(£3.5m/£2

.3m 

2. (a)  Percentage of the Council's procurement expenditure awarded to companies with headquarters in Gwynedd. 

(b) Percentage of the Council's procurement expenditure awarded to companies with headquarters or a branch in Gwynedd. 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

45% - (£48m) 44% - (£45m) 45% - (£43m)

57% - (£61m) 56% - (£58m) 58% - (£56m)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

(£107m) (£103m) (£96m)

2014-15 2015/16  2016/17

Local Revenue Expenditure - Yearly

Caff06d - Percentage of the Council's procurement expenditure awarded to
companies with headquarters in Gwynedd

Local Expenditure - Percentage of the Council's procurement expenditure
awarded to companies with headquarters or a branch in Gwynedd

41%
44% 45% 44% 45% 46% 46% 45% 45%

49%
52%

57% 58% 56% 56%
59% 60% 58% 59%

62%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

2015/16
(£21m)

2015/16
(£46m)

2015/16
(£72m)

2015/16
(£103m)

2016/17
(£20m)

2016/17
(£44m)

2016/17
(£67m)

2016/17
(£96m)

2017/18
(£22m)

2016/17
(£46m)

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2

Local Revenue Expenditure

Caff06d - Percentage of the Council's procurement expenditure awarded to companies
with headquarters in Gwynedd .

Local expenditure - Percentage of the Council's procurement expenditure awarded to
companies with headquarters or a branch in Gwynedd

Corporate Support Measures 

 

Appendix 1 

P
age 68



Appendix 1 

Galw Gwynedd and Siopau Gwynedd   01/04/17 – 

30/06/17 

01/07/17 – 

30/09/17 

1. Percentage who noted a score of less than 10 for with the service provided when contacting the Council by calling 

Galw Gwynedd. 

- - 28% 25% 

2. Percentage and score of less than 10 for with the service provided when contacting the Council by attending Siop 

Gwynedd. 

- - 11% 11% 

 
Registration   01/04/17 – 

30/06/17 

01/07/17 – 

31/10/17 

1. Percentage of satisfaction questionnaires that score the Births, Marriages and Deaths Registration Service as very 

good (a score of 10/10). 

- - 86.6% 85.0% 

Health, Safety and Well-being     

15,288
16,232

12,538

15,970

12,974

15,957

13,235

15,316 15,109 14,668
15,744 16,074

15,161

2194 2461
1550

2581

931 920 1241 1175 814 792 768 907 551

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

Number of Calls Answered and Missed per month 2017/18

Calls Answered

Calls Missed

P
age 69



Appendix 1 

1. Number of shortcomings that have been identified in programmed investigations  

 

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Rhaglen Archwiliadau Mehefin - Gorffennaf 2017

Tor Cyfraith Diffyg trefniadaeth Mân ddiffygion

Investigations Programme June – July 2017 

Lack of organisation Minor defects Breach of the law 

P
age 70



Appendix 1 

2. Number of managers that manage high risks that have gained a health and safety qualification 

 

In the chart below, the 'J' columns portray the situation at the end of July 2017, and the 'N' columns portray the situation in mid-November 2017. 

 

Translation 
  01/04/17 31/07/17 – 

27/11/17 

1. Users' opinion on the quality of written translation work - - 100% 100% 

2. Users' opinion on the simultaneous translation work 
- - 100% No update 

available 

Communication and Engagement 

7 7
21 22

7 7 5 5
11 11

2 3

4 6

1
12

1 1 3 3
0 0

1

96

9 9

31
7

17 17

1 1
3 3

105

9

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Wedi mynychu Wedi cofrestru heb fynychuAttended Registered Didn’t attend 

P
age 71



Appendix 1 

Measure 1 Number and percentage of users reporting that they were unsatisfied or very unsatisfied with the website (01 April 2017 - 30 June 2018) (Score out of 5) 

 

 

 
 

 

Between 01 April 2017 - 30 June 2017, the comparative figure for the number of people who were 'unsatisfied' or 'very unsatisfied' with the website was 28%, therefore 

the number has halved. 

61

11 6 4

498

(11%) (2%) (1%) (0.5%) (86%)
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

1 2 3 4 5

Very unsatisfied (72, 12.5%) Unsatisfied (10, 1.5%)

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

sp
o
n
se

s 

Score out of 5 

P
age 72



Appendix 1 

Measure 2 How we have responded to the observations noted (01 April 2017 - 30 June 2017) 

 

79% of the observations or complaints received were solved within 24 hours. 

Between 01 April 2017 - 30 June 2017, the comparative figure for the number of complaints in the process of being solved was 13%. 

0%

15%

85%

Response to Comments 

Unable to solve In progress Have been solved

P
age 73



Appendix 1 

Measure:  Communication and Engagement Plans - Score out of 10 received at the end of a specific plan in response to the question 

“To what extent has the support you have received from the Unit assisted you to engage effectively with the people of Gwynedd?” 

 

 

Red line = average score  

Measure - definition 2015-16 2016-17 01/04/17 – 

31/05/17 

01/06/17 – 

30/09/17 

Organisational Development     

1. The number of formal complaints received under the Council's Corporate System 28 24 12 18 

Observations –  

18 formal complaints were received and 8 of these were successfully solved to the complainant's satisfaction. 10 complainants decided to take their complaints to the 

Ombudsman, and nine of the complaints were determined as "no investigation". We are awaiting a decision on the tenth complaint 

Sc
o

re
 o

u
t 

o
f 

1
0

 

Apr – Sept. 

2016 
Sept-Nov. 

2016 
Nov 2016 – 

Jan 2017 

Jan-Mar 

2017 

Apr-

June 

2017 

July-Oct 

2017 

Score from the Department 

P
age 74



Appendix 1 

Information Management   01/04/17 – 

21/07/17 

22/07/17 – 

13/11/17 

1. Questionnaire (record management/data protection/freedom of information/records centre) 

'Have you received the service you wanted?' 

- - 100% 100% 

2. The number of information incidents (where information about an individual has been stolen/lost/sent to the wrong address) 

 

 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 22/07/17 – 

13/11/17 

3. Freedom of Information Requests Response Performance – percentage responded to within 20 working days 

 

91% 86% 87% 89% 

Learning and Development   2016/17 01/04/17 – 

10/11/17 

1. "Does the learning and development provision help you provide a better service to the people of Gwynedd?" (Score 

/10) 

"What would make it 10/10?" 

- - 8.3 8.3 

2. "Does the learning and development provision help your staff provide a better service to the people of Gwynedd?" 

(Score /10) 

"What would make it 10/10?" 

- - 8.0 8.5 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

P
age 75



Appendix 1 

3. "Does the learning and development provision help you as a Member to fulfil your role effectively, in order for you to 

be able to provide a better service for the people of Gwynedd?" (Score /10) 

"What would make it 10/10?" 

- - 9.8 9.3 

Human Resources     

1. Number of days of sickness absence per head on average 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Information from April up to the end of September 2017 

(average number of days per head) 

 

2015-16 2016 - 17 2017 - 18 

3.78 4.00 3.85 

 

2. Number of employment cases referred to the Employment Appeals Committee, and the number of resolutions that are contrary to the employer's original decision. 

Observations –  

      One appeal case was held, with the committee in agreement with the appellant on one element of the matter, but refused another element. 

 

 

 Legal Service Measure 

Measure - definition April – October 2017 

1. Percentage of satisfaction questionnaires from client officers that scored the service as 10/10. 85% 

 

P
age 76


	Agenda
	5 PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR THE ENVIRONMENT
	Item 5 - Appendix 1 - Performance Report of the Cabinet Member for Envirnment

	6 PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION
	Item 6 - Appendix 1 - Performance Report of the Cabinet Member for Education
	Item 6 - Appendix 2 - Performance Report of the Cabinet Member for Education

	7 PERFORMANCE REPORT OF THE DEPUTY LEADER
	Item 7 - Appendix 1- Performance Report of the Deputy Leader


